PROPOSAL OUTLINE AND MINIMUM CONTENT REQUIREMENTS
SOLICITATION NO.: S17-T24178

To simplify the review process and to obtain the maximum degree of comparability, the Proposal must follow the outline as set forth below and, at a minimum, contain the information as requested.  Offeror(s) are encouraged to include additional relevant information.

[bookmark: _Toc172602016][bookmark: _Toc497280424][bookmark: _Toc498839035]1.0	TITLE PAGE:

1.1	The title page should include the title and number of the RFP, name and address of the Offeror(s), and the date of the Proposal. 

[bookmark: _Toc172602017]2.0   	OFFER & SUBMITTAL FORM:

2.1	PROPOSAL MUST BE SIGNED AND NOTORIZED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE(S) OF THE PROPOSER, WHICH MUST BE THE ACTUAL LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL PERFORM THE CONTRACT IF AWARDED AND THE TOTAL FIXED PRICE CONTAINED THEREIN SHALL REMAIN FIRM FOR A PERIOD OF ONE-HUNDRED EIGHTY (180) DAYS.
[bookmark: _Toc172602018]
3.0   	LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL:

3.1	A letter of transmittal shall include the following:

3.1.1	The names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of the individuals who are authorized to make representation on behalf of the Offeror.

3.1.2	A statement that the per-unit proposed price and/or lump sum (if prices are proposed) is the total fixed price for the equipment and services enumerated.

3.1.3	A statement that the person signing the letter of transmittal is authorized to legally bind the Offeror; that the Proposal and the total fixed price contained therein shall remain firm for a period of one hundred-eighty (180) days, and that the Proposal will comply with the requirements and arrangements stated in the RFP.

[bookmark: _Toc172602019][bookmark: _Toc497280425][bookmark: _Toc498839036]4.0	EXPERTISE/EXPERIENCE/QUALIFICATION STATEMENT:
	
4.1	Provide a brief statement describing the Offeror’s background information, history, resources and/or track record. Please limit to three (3) pages.

4.2	Provide an organizational chart of proposed team or staff for this project.

4.3	Please provide biographies or resumes on the key staff who would be implementing this project with COH, along with those who would support the solution in the future.
4.4	Provide copies of key personnel certifications and/or licenses.
[bookmark: _Toc172602020]
5.0	PROPOSED STRATEGY AND OPERATIONAL PLAN:

5.1	Provide a detailed description and methodology of the proposed plan for the RFP requirements, which should include, but not be limited to the following:

5.1.1	A brief statement of the Offeror understanding of the work to be done; and

5.1.2	A detailed description that clearly defines the method of approach that will be utilized in the successful achievement of the RFP’s intended Scope of Work.

5.2	As part of its proposal, Vendor shall answer all the questions listed in these six (6) categories. Please describe how your solution does or does not address each requirement. 

5.3	Category 1: Functional Requirements 

5.3.1	How do you interface with Open311 API for the seamless integration with existing Lagan CRM? Please detail your strategy for continued integration with future updates to the standard.
5.3.2	Which Smartphone platforms and/or versions are supported?
5.3.3	Which Smartphone platforms and/or versions are not supported?
5.3.4	Does your application upload – pictures, videos, and documents? How do you upload the files to our system, define the flow?
5.3.5	Need to consider issues related to anonymity vs. registered identity
5.3.6	Will the solution allow for creation of new registered identities?
	5.3.7	Will 311 submissions be searchable / viewable from within the mobile 	application?  (See Baltimore mobile 311 app – free to download)
5.3.8	Does your SmartApp take advantage of the GPS capabilities built into most SmartPhones? If so, how? If not, how does the citizen identify a location?
5.3.9	How does the Citizen identify the City service area limits while searching on a location?
5.3.10	Can the application pull the SR questions from Lagan CRM self-services (311 web site)? If you can, how do you do that? If you cannot, how do you propose to get that information?
5.3.11	Please explain the complete cycle of SR creation: 
5.3.12	How does data flow through and between your system and our CRM solution?
5.3.13	Tackle the interface between: 
5.3.14	The SmartApp and Open 311
5.3.15	The SmartApp and the vendor’s back office/cloud components,
5.3.16	The vendor’s cloud components and our back-office components
5.3.17	The SmartApp and any 3rd party services (like ESRI, Google Maps, payment services not currently relevant to the City, etc.)
5.3.18	If the SR is sent to a wrong work-queue, how will it be reassigned to the appropriate queue? Will that impact the SLA due dates?
5.3.19	Does the solution allow for push notifications to automatically notify registered users when their SR has been closed or updated?
5.3.20	Does the solution allow for push notifications to broad sets of users (e.g. equivalent of t	argeted reverse-911)?













5.3.21 	The Data flow for current 3-1-1 environment ‘COH 311 
























5.4	Category 2: Reporting and Data Requirements 

5.4.1	What reports can you provide? Do you provide the tools for reporting usage, access, participation and more?
5.4.2	What type of information will be stored in your system? 
5.4.3	How will you access 311 Case and Client data from the Lagan system?
5.4.4	What is the security model used by the solution?
5.4.5	How do you ensure Data privacy, Confidentiality, and Integrity?
5.4.6	How are uploaded files (photos, videos, etc.) scanned for malicious code or content?
5.4.7	Does the solution allow for advanced image recognition to filter uploaded content that is explicitly sexual?
5.4.8	Does the solution allow for offline record creation, and if so, how is it submitted once connected?
5.4.9	How will you comply with current and future Texas law regarding public record retention policy?
5.4.10	How will you comply with current and future Texas law regarding requests for public information?


5.5	Category 3: Implementation, Support, Customization, and Training

5.5.1	How is the solution licensed?  What metrics are available and how are support / maintenance contracts structured?
5.5.2	How often does your solution have new releases (if applicable) to address new Smartphone platform versions? Please explain how you would keep in synch with Open311 and Lagan CRM updates.
5.5.3	Is the application configurable? If so, explain how it is accomplished?
5.5.4	What is the architectural approach for your solution development?  E.g. will custom code be written for each target Smartphone platform/version, or does your solution use a single development environment that automatically generates native code?  (code once, deploy to multiple platforms)
5.5.5	Does the customer have the ability to add new functionalities (data elements and business logic) within your solution?
5.5.6	Do you provide a portal that allows City to customize – add, move, rename, or delete fields? What skills do they need? 
5.5.7	Is training available for COH staff to maintain and manage the application in-house?
5.5.8	What will be the impact of the customization in the event of any upgrade?
5.5.9	What customization options are available on your side of the interface to give the citizens a standard look and feel desired by the City? What is the approximate cost for making those customizations?
5.5.10	Does the solution integrate with LDAP-based identity management solutions?
5.5.11	As part of the proposal, please submit a statement of work, including a list of deliverables/milestones that describes: 
5.5.12	Project execution plan listing deliverables and milestones;  
5.5.13	Project Organization chart;
5.5.14	Roles & responsibilities of all project team members – Vendor & City

5.6	Category 4: Pricing

5.6.1	Do you have a Zero cost payment structure? If yes, please explain your model. 
5.6.2.	Please supply the Total Cost of Ownership that will include – licenses, professional services, customization cost for City branding, 5 years maintenance and support costs, optional features , and any other hardware or software that City needs to buy in addition to yours.
5.6.3	If there are costs associated with joining ‘sub-apps’ or ‘service requests’ with the application, please include the costs for at least six (6) SRs in your initial offering. Also, include the price for future SR additions. 
5.6.4	What is the cost (if any) to the City for using your service?
5.6.5	For ‘On-Premise’ installation (Non SaaS), please supply the system architecture diagram and server specifications for Development, Test, and Production environments.
5.6.6	What managed services offerings are available and what pricing?
5.6.7	How will community outreach / marketing / education be approached and at what cost?  (see Grand Rapids mobile 311 video <http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rv8hCp_xA4M&feature=related>)

5.6.8	As part of the proposal, Vendor shall submit their product price in the cost matrix in Exhibit III, ‘SmartPhoneApps.CostMatrix.xlsx’: 

5.7	Category 5:  Vendor Experience

5.7.1	What is your experience with other government agencies using Open311 API? Please provide at least three (3) client contact’s information.
5.7.2	What is your business Model? Please define.
5.7.3	Describe your company’s project management experience, particularly with government and municipal 10
5.7.4	Is the solution available through a Texas DIR contract or a GSA contract or equivalent?
5.7.5	Is your solution listed on the Gartner magic quadrant for mobile development solutions?

5.8	Category 6: Other Considerations

5.8.1	Please describe any other features of your system, or attributes of your company, that you believe would be helpful to the COH now or in the future relating to this RFP (3 page maximum response to this section)

5.8.2	Please describe if you also provide solution to integrate 311 to Facebook and Twitter (include possible associated cost(s).
[bookmark: _Toc172602021]
6.0	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

6.1	Submit your company’s audited annual financial statements, in accordance with and as defined in the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) regulation(s) for the past two years. In addition, include your and Dunn & Bradstreet Report or Federal Tax Forms Filed to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for the past two years.
[bookmark: _Toc497280427][bookmark: _Toc498839038][bookmark: _Toc172602022]
7.0	CONTENTS:

7.1	The contents should be identified by section, description, page number, and should 
include, at a minimum, the following sections:

7.1.1	Title Page

7.2	Signed and Notarized Offer and Submittal Form (Exhibit I)

7.3	Letter of Transmittal

7.4	Expertise/Experience/Reliability Statement

7.5	Organizational Chart, Resumes and Certifications/Licenses of Proposed Key Personnel

7.6	Proposed Strategy/Operational Plan (Mandatory Responses to 5.1 thru 5.8.2)

7.7	Reserved

7.8	Financial Statement and Dunn & Bradstreet Reports or Federal Tax Forms Filed for Past Two Years

7.9	Signed M/WBE Forms: Attachment “A” Schedule of M/WBE Participation, and Attachment “B” Letter of Intent (Exhibit II) (Only applicable if proposed pricing is $100,000.00 or greater) 

7.10	List of References and List of Proposed Subcontractors (Exhibit I)
 
7.11	Pricing Form/Fee Schedule (Exhibit III) 

7.12	Fair Campaign Ordinance Form “A” (Exhibit V)

7.13	Affidavit of Ownership or Control (Exhibit VI)

7.14	Drug Compliance Agreement Attachment “A” and Contractor’s Certification of No Safety Impact Positions Attachment “C” (Exhibit VII)

7.15	Anti-Collusion Statement (Exhibit VIII)
 
7.16	Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (Exhibit IX )

7.17	City Contractors’ Pay or Play Acknowledgement Form (Exhibit X) (Only applicable if proposed pricing is $100,000.00 or greater) 
7.18	Hire Houston First Affidavit (Download Copy at http://purchasing.houstontx.gov/index.shtml and submit to MOBO via e-mail to HHF-MOBO@houstontx.gov or fax to 832.393.0952.
7.19	Requested Information Outlined in the Scope of Work and Other Additional Relevant/Supporting Information or Alternate Proposals
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